CEF3: Low-Income Community Solar Deployment

Q&A for Week of 09/30/2020 – 10/06/2020
1. Can a faith-based institution count as a low-income service provider for the purposes of being considered a Qualifying Subscriber?
Yes, however Applicants should be aware of the portion of the draft contract which reads “The funds provided under this contract may not be used to fund religious worship, exercise, or instruction. No person shall be required to participate in any religious worship, exercise, or instruction in order to have access to the facilities funded by this grant.”
More broadly, where low-income service provision is not the sole purpose of an organization, measures may need to be taken to ensure that benefits support only the low-income service activities of the organization. These measures may be negotiated as deemed necessary by Commerce at the time of contract negotiation.
2. Can a non-profit electric utility act as a Low-Income Service Provider for the purposes of being considered a Qualifying Subscriber?
Yes, however Applicants should be aware of the response to LICSD Q&A Question 1, above, which in part states “where low-income service provision is not the sole purpose of an organization, measures may need to be taken to ensure that benefits support only the low-income service activities of the organization. These measures may be negotiated as deemed necessary by Commerce at the time of contract negotiation.” Public entities other than those listed in the definition for Low-Income Service Providers listed in RFA Section 1.7 DEFINITIONS may not qualify as Low-Income Service Providers for the purposes of this solicitation.
Applicants may also refer to RFA Section 1.2, which states “Pursuant to Clean Energy Transformation Act (CETA), measures that lower Energy Burden (as defined in SECTION 1.7 DEFINITIONS) include, but are not limited to, weatherization, conservation and efficiency services, and monetary assistance, such as a grant program or discounts for lower income households, intended to lower a household's Energy Burden.” Such programs and services may qualify as measures that lower the Energy Burden of Qualifying Subscribers provided they meet all other requirements outlined in the RFA.
Updated 10/14/2020: added clarification around public entities listed in Low-Income Service provider definition.
3. Can a school district that serves a high percentage of low income students (as defined by eligibility for free or reduced meals or some other metric) qualify as a low-income participant? Could this grant be used to install a solar array on a school rooftop and have them be the sole subscriber or beneficiary of the output?
Please see the response to LICSD Q&A Question 2, above. Public entities other than those listed in the definition for Low-Income Service Providers listed in RFA Section 1.7 DEFINITIONS may not qualify as Low-Income Service Providers for the purposes of this solicitation. If the school is a non-profit meeting the definition of Low-Income Service Provider, then it could act as the solar beneficiary of project benefits (RFA Section 1.3 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS for more detail).
Updated 10/14/2020: added clarification around public entities listed in Low-Income Service provider definition.
4. Can the project span multiple meters and parcels?
Commerce has placed no restrictions on the number of meters that may benefit from a given project site. Per RFA Section 1.7 DEFINITIONS, Subscribers must be “a retail electric customer of an electric utility or individual residing within a retail electric utility territory who owns or is the beneficiary of one or more units of a Community Solar project directly interconnected with that same utility.”
RFA Section 1.3 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS states that “At each project site, Applicant must plan to construct one or more solar arrays, which together have a nameplate generating capacity of more than 100 kW DC. A project site must be limited to one property, or to contiguous properties owned by the same entity.” A project site may span multiple parcels within a given property, provided they are owned by the same entity.
5. Do you anticipate extending the bid due date?
At this time, Commerce does not anticipate extending the application deadline listed in RFA Section 2.2 ESTIMATE SCHEDULE OF PROCUREMENT ACTIVITIES.
6. What additional details are you willing to provide, if any, beyond what is stated in bid documents concerning how you will identify the winning bid?
Applicants should refer to RFA SECTION 4.1-4.2 for all publicly disclosed information regarding application evaluation for the Low-Income Community Solar Deployment (LICSD) program.
7. Was this bid posted to the nationwide free bid notification website at www.mygovwatch.com/free? Other than your own website, where was this bid posted?
All Washington state competitive solicitations are posted to the Washington Electronic Business Solution (WEBS) platform. COMMERCE has posted the RFA and other application materials to the program website identified in the RFA and to WEBS. COMMERCE takes no responsibility for LICSD program materials posted to other webpages.

Q&A for Week of 10/07/2020 – 10/13/2020
8. We have a portfolio of solar projects that spans multiple properties and system sizes, one or two of which will meet criteria for the LICSD. We have matching funds for the portfolio of projects. How much of these matching funds may be counted toward the LICSD request? For example: 500 kW across 6 sites (1 site > 100kW DC), totaling $1M with $800k (80%) non-state funds. If we request $200k (20% of the total project and 100% of the cost of the qualifying project), will any matching funds be eligible?
All project sites included in the application must meet the minimum qualifications described in the RFA (including, but not limited to, “At each project site, Applicant must plan to construct one or more solar arrays, which together have a nameplate generating capacity of more than 100 kW DC.”). Applications that include sites that do not meet minimum qualifications may be considered non-responsive and be disqualified from further consideration. Applicants should also be aware that final payment, as well as any progress payments negotiated for completed milestones may be tied to progress across all project sites included in the application.
9. Are educational activities associated with project installation conducted in partnership with Tribal and technical colleges, eligible reimbursable expenditures?
While such activities are in many cases important to ensuring equitable project implementation, because the Clean Energy Fund is funded through the State Capital Budget, there is a requirement that “All project costs must be necessary for and directly connected to the acquisition and installation of the solar array.” Beyond possible limited exceptions, educational activities are typically not considered to be eligible, reimbursable expenditures of the grant funding or eligible match.
10. Are community colleges eligible to apply?
Eligible applicants include 501(c)(3) Non-Profits, Federally Recognized Tribal Governments, Housing Authorities, or Retail Electric Utilities. If a community college is one of these, they are primary eligible applicants. If not, they may still partner with an eligible applicant to apply. Please also see the definition of Qualifying Subscriber and the answer to LICSD Q&A Question #3 for information on which entities can act as Qualifying Subscribers for the purposes of this program.
11. Is the meeting rescheduled? I am unable to connect to the Skype and Conf. Call.
Pre-Application Conference 1 was not rescheduled. Please ensure you were using the correct call-in information, as there is different information for each pre-application conference. We have only received one report of issues to date. Please also consider attending future pre-application conferences or viewing recordings on the website and submitting any additional questions via email.
12. Could one or more of our affordable housing properties (where the housing provider pays the common area electricity bills) subscribe to one of the community solar gardens that eventually gets built as a result of the Clean Energy Fund, Low-Income Community Solar Deployment Grant? And how do we get in contact with the community solar garden developers to subscribe?
See RFA Section 1.7 DEFINITIONS for a definition of Low-Income Service Provider. Many affordable housing providers are considered Low-Income Service Providers, and residents of affordable housing providers may also be considered Low-Income Households. Depending on their incorporation status, they may also be eligible primary applicants for the grant awards. Contact and partnership arrangements between Applicants and contractors, including and requested bids or project designs, are the responsibility of Applicants.
13. Are non-profit housing providers excluded from applying?
Primary eligible applicants include 501(c)(3) Non-Profits, Federally Recognized Tribal Governments, Housing Authorities, or Retail Electric Utilities (See RFA Section 1.3 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS; Also see RFA Section 1.7 DEFINITIONS for definitions for these terms). If the non-profit housing provider is one of these, they may apply independently; if not, they may partner with a primary eligible Applicant to apply. 
14. If a retail electric utility is applying, I would assume the 'letter from the retail electric utility' is not expected. However, since I see that is designated as optional and scored, does that mean we are missing out on potential additional points?
Some components of this letter may not be relevant to retail electric utilities, but some may still be relevant – such as coordination related to expected grid impacts (utilities may find internal coordination is necessary to evaluate this). Commerce expects to apply the RFA requirements and scoring criteria equally across applicant types, so retail electric utilities are still required to submit a letter under this attachment request if they wish to receive points in this category.
15. Is there a minimum number of subscribers required? 
RFA Section 1.3 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS addresses this: “Limiting distribution of benefits to a single Qualifying Subscriber is allowable only if that Qualifying Subscriber is a Low-Income Service Provider.” So the minimum number of Qualifying Subscribers is one (1) if that subscriber is a Low-Income Service Provider – otherwise, the minimum is two (2).
16. Maintenance is not covered, but site-prep is covered, is this a negotiable subject? If some maintenance is required in the physical location of installation. 
The listed examples of eligible and ineligible are not negotiable, but whether or not a specific activity is considered eligible could depend on work whether the work is required for site preparation. The term “Maintenance” that is included under ineligible, non-reimbursable expenditures in RFA Section 1.2 OBJECTIVES AND SCOPE OF WORK generally refers to maintenance over the life of the project. That list is non-exhaustive and project costs will be negotiated at the time of contract negotiation.
17. Does the subscriber need to be a separate entity from the retail electric utility?
The definition of both Subscriber and Qualifying Subscriber are included under RFA Section 1.7 DEFINITIONS, and a Retail Electric Utility could generally act as a Subscriber, provided meets that definition. Please see the answer to Q&A Question #2, above, for information on Retail Electric Utilities active as Qualifying Subscribers under the definition of Low-Income Service Provider. 
18. For the scoring of the description of how a system is going to address peak demand, what would be compelling information to provide? 
Ultimate scoring decisions for applications are up to the review panel to determine, so it is difficult for Commerce to offer guidance as to how Applicants should design their projects. The RFA does specifically mention western orientation and tracking systems as possible methods of addressing peak demand.
19. The RFA specifically mentions: If the project would be interconnected on the distribution grid and would help address peak demand considerations, the Applicant’s response should describe what steps they have taken to verify this with the local electric utility, and what steps if any would be taken to ensure the array helps to meet peak demand. Question: Is that for behind the meter projects to investigate how it would lower the site host's peak demand or in front of the meter projects to investigate utility distribution system peaks?
Commerce has interpreted the proviso language that mandates this prioritization to mean reducing peak demand on the local electricity grid. Either behind the meter or in front of the meter projects may address this based on matching their peak generation to peak demand on the local electricity grid. There is no expectation that utilities carry out hosting capacity analysis for a given project, however Applicants seeking points for peak demand considerations should take reasonable steps to verify the projected impact of their project.
20. If a non-profit submits the application, are they required to be registered with WSU as a community solar implementer?
No, there is no such requirement in the RFA.
21. Will this opportunity be available next year?
The funding that is included under this solicitation is what is available under this program. There is no expectation that it will be renewed, so that is up to the discretion of the legislature.
22. Is there a scoring priority given between direct low income benefit vs. low income provider benefit? 
Please refer to RFA Section 4.2 for application scoring guidance, and RFA Section 1.2 for information on prioritization. Commerce has not given specific guidance on such prioritization, and the exact scoring rubric is not provided in the RFA. Overall, the largest categories of scoring criteria are around a) maximizing Energy Burden reduction and other benefits to Qualifying Subscribers, and b) impacts to Highly Impacted Communities and Vulnerable Populations, so Applicants may keep that in mind in preparing their applications.
23. What is the definition of behind/in front of the meter?
Because these terms are not used in the RFA and Commerce has not to date asserted that any program requirements or prioritization will be centered around any distinction between the two, Commerce is, for the time being, choosing not to define these terms for the purposes of this solicitation.
24. Please provide a definition of Total Solar Resource Fraction?
This language has been corrected in the RFA updated 10/14/2020 to read “annual average of daily solar radiation per square meter”, as per the original intent of this measure. This figure can be found using the tool linked in RFA Section 3.9 VERIFICATION OF SOLAR ASSET.
25. Going back to the Equity Narrative, I understand it’s more focused on how the project provides lowered energy burden and direct or indirect benefits, can the latter include equitable workforce and having women and BIPOC workforce?
RFA addresses this to a certain extent. To align with procurement laws and regulations, the following guidance is given with respect to subcontractors that are Minority-, Women-, Veteran-Owned Businesses or Small Businesses: “no preference on the basis of participation is included in the evaluation of Diverse Business Inclusion Plans submitted, and no minimum level of minority- and women-owned business enterprise (MWBE), Washington Small Business, or Washington State certified Veteran Business participation is required as a condition for receiving an award.”
That being said, there are certain workforce benefits that may be included under direct or indirect businesses, per RFA Section 3.2 B Equity Narrative: “Other direct or indirect benefits may include but are not limited to: job or training opportunities for members of Highly Impacted Communities or Vulnerable Populations.”
26. For the cost breakdown, do you need labor and material break downs from contractors?
In the application itself (available on the program website listed in RFA Section 2.1 RFA COORDINATOR), there is further information and the format for the budget and it is broken out by certain categories, including equipment costs, salaries, indirect and overheard, etc. There is no requirement to submit formal quotes or bids, though that may be helpful in preparing an accurate cost estimate.
27. For a utility applying, what's up with the 3 business references requirement?
Follow the instructions the best you can – it is up to Applicants to choose their business references. References may add to Applicants’ applications in different ways, speaking to experience relevant to the project such as that listed in RFA Section 3.3 B:
a. Solar PV project development and/or installation of related infrastructure;
b. Community engagement with groups relevant to the proposed project, including meaningful co-creation of similar projects; and
c. Other relevant experience that indicates the qualifications of the Applicant, and any subcontractors, for the performance of the potential contract.
28. In the draft RFA there was language that said the benefit to the low-income subscribers had to pay for the funding from Commerce over time. Is that language still in there, and how are you evaluating that? Is there some sort of maximum period, or standard window over which that is evaluated?
See RFA Section 1.2 concerning prioritization. That was changed from a minimum qualification to a strong prioritization (30% of total points are expected to center around Energy Burden reduction). This would be over the expected life of the project – it’s not uncommon for this to be 20 years for solar projects. Regardless, there should be some commitment to the level of payback you are committing to, and a clear path to show how that will be achieved.
29. As a 501(c)(3) Non-Profit Applicant, with the beneficiary being individuals connected to our work, can we have a project that is behind the meter on our office which would lower the cost of power to us and thereby allowing us to pass more services on to the clients.  Is this consistent with the definition of Minimum Qualifications in Section 1.3 under Project Qualifications?
Without having the complete application, Commerce cannot definitively say whether a project is consistent with the Minimum Qualifications. That being said, generally this seems to align with the Minimum Qualifications, with the one caveat described in the answer to Q&A Question #2, above, for 501(c)(3)s that have other purposes beyond low-income service provision.
30. Grants to affordable housing property owners are only for community solar projects (>100 kW) at this time, not rooftop solar projects (e.g., a 10 kW system) or solar thermal projects?
Yes. According to RFA Section 1.3 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS, the project must “produce solar electricity” and “have a nameplate generating capacity of more than 100 kW DC”.
31. The ARRA funding in the 2009 timeframe had numerous restrictions, requirements and onerous reporting stipulations. What are the ARRA requirements for the $2,328,000 in funds for this program?
Please see RFA Section 4.7 for requirements of successful applicants, including requirements specific to each funding source and reporting requirements.
32. Maintenance is not covered, but site- prep is covered – is this negotiable? What is the definition for site-prep? Can some maintenance be performed at the exact site of physical installation?
Please see the answer to Q&A Question #15, above.
33. What is the definition of behind the meter/in front of the meter
Please see the answer to Q&A Question #21, above.
34. On page 1 of the request for applications, the contract period is given as 6/25/21 to 6/23/23; however, on page 7 of the RFA, the period of performance is given as 6/1/21 to 5/31/23. What is the correct project period for this program?
The correct estimated period of performance is 06/25/21–06/23/23. The latter section will be corrected and an updated version of the RFA posted to the program website.
35. Item 9c on Attachment D states that the grant should not exceed $200,000 per megawatt. This would translate to $20,000 for a 100kW solar array, which might account for about 10% of the project cost. Item 9d (concerning the minimum 35% allocation of benefits to low income communities) suggests that 9c does not apply if a project satisfies the 35% threshold. Is the 35% requirement required for all projects, and if so, is 9c essentially a defunct section of the grant requirements such that the $200,000 per megawatt limit no longer applies? Can projects apply to receive as much as 100% of their project cost from this grant program?
This question references the program Proviso language, which is included as Attachment D to the draft contract (Exhibit D to the RFA). In this and past rounds of funding, item 9d of the enabling proviso has been interpreted to mean that at least 35% of program funding must be for community solar projects that provide solar electricity to the listed entities. Commerce does not intend to apply a $200,000 per megawatt maximum grant amount to projects that meet the minimum qualifications of LICSD2020. Projects can receive up to 100% of their project costs, provided those project costs are eligible, not exceeding the $1,000,000 maximum grant request, and comply with all other requirements of the RFA.
36. Can you please provide the weblink to the answered questions re: the LICSD grant?  I do not see it on the grant program website.
Please see the link entitled “LICSD Q&A (Updated XX-XX-XXXX)”, with XX-XX-XXXX signifying the date of the latest Wednesday to pass, under the “Grant Program Materials” section. (NOTE: Given the fact that this question was asking about the location of a document where the question would typically be answered, a response was provided via email.)

[bookmark: _GoBack]Answers to the questions asked during Pre-Application Conference 2 are being investigated and will be posted in a future week’s Q&A update.
